
Board Agenda: March 4, 2024, 7:15 pm 
Sparwood Public Library Associa�on 

1. Approve Agenda

Be it resolved that the agenda for March 4, 2024 is approved.

2. Approval of Minutes (atached)

Be it resolved that the minutes of the February 21, 2024 Sparwood Board of Trustees meet ng are

approved.

3. Introduc�ons
Babs Kelly will be providing governance support to the Chair and Vice chair and will be atending
SPL’s regular mee�ngs to provide parliamentary support. Babs’ support is funded by the
Kootenay Library Federa�on, with support from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs.

4. Financial Policies (dra� atached).

5. Library Reopening (atached)

Be it resolved that the March 3, 2024 Reopening Updates are received.

6. Category 1 Funding Agreement with the District of Sparwood (atached).

7. Consultant biweekly updates (atached)

Be it resolved that the March 3, 2024 Consultant Update is received.

8. Correspondence
a. Email Re: Library Closure, February 21, 2024, from Suzanne Georgiou-Morey
b. Leter Re: Outgoing Sparwood Library Board (Compliance), March 1, 2024 from Mari

Mar�n, Director, Public Libraries Branch, Ministry of Municipal Affairs

Be it resolved that all correspondence is received. 

9. Se�ng future Board mee�ng dates

10. Adjournment













  Policy C.1 – Financial Operations 

  Policy C.1 – Financial Operations 

POLICY 

1. Accounts Payable – For consistency of information and control, two signatures are required 
on cheques. Accounts payable will be paid within 30 days of invoice date, and where 
applicable early payment discounts will be taken advantage of. 

2. Payroll Cheques – For consistency in information and control, two signatures are required on 
payroll cheques. 

3. Monthly Accounting – The monthly accounting will be completed by the 15th of the following 
month. Cheques, deposits, and journal entries will be posted monthly into the general ledger.  

4. Monthly Financial Statements – Summarized year-to-date financial statements (unaudited) 
will be forwarded to the Finance Committee. Monthly financial statements to be provided with 
actual versus budget figures. The bank reconciliation to be signed off monthly. 

5. Quarterly Financial Statements – Summarized quarterly financial statements (unaudited) will 
be presented by the chief librarian and/or a SPLA board member to the District of Sparwood 
council.  

6. Government Remittances – A statement signed by the Treasurer and/or designate will be 
included in monthly financial statements confirming that government payroll remittances for the 
previous month have been remitted and that payroll is current. Remittances will be accrued to 

the appropriate month. 

7. Banking – On receipt, all cheques will be stamped “for deposit only to the account of SPLA.” 

Cheques will be deposited to SPLA’s account within five (5) business days of receipt. 

8. Authorization Limit – Staff or Board members have the authorization to purchase or order 
items within the SPLA’s approved annual budget for any individual amount up to $300.00. 

Non-budgeted items must be submitted to the Board for approval. 

9. Staff and Volunteer Travel Reimbursement – Travel will be reimbursed monthly upon 
submission of documentation outlining destination, kilometres travelled and reason for travel. 
The Treasurer/Finance Committee will be responsible to undertake an annual review of 
mileage reimbursement and make recommendations to the Board for any changes. Travel 
advances will be given with appropriate supporting documentation and must be approved by 
the Treasurer. For conferences, a report to the Board must be prepared itemizing costs and 
rationale for attending a conference as part of the annual budget process. Board approval 
must be given before incurring any conference expenses. 

10. Fiscal Year End –SPLA’s year end is December 31. On an annual basis, prior to that date, 
the Board shall determine the nature of the engagement to be conducted by SPLA’s 
independent accounting firm. (Audit, Review or Notice to Reader). All materials required for the 
year-end financial statement preparation will be completed by the end of March for 
presentation to the SPLA’s independent accounting firm. Draft financial statements will be 
presented to the Finance Committee annually for review. Per Section 40 (3) of the BC Library 
Act, the SPLA must  

a. Prepare annual financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, 

b. Provide a copy of the financial statements for inspection by the members of the public 
library association at or before the annual general meeting, and 

c. Provide a copy of the financial statements to any municipality or regional district that 
is eligible under Section 35 of the BC Library Act to make an appointment to the 
library board. 



  Policy C.1 – Financial Operations 

  Policy C.1 – Financial Operations 

11. Budget – Per Section 40 (1) of the BC Library Act, in each year, the SPLA must prepare and 
approve a budget for providing library service. The draft budget for the upcoming fiscal year 
will be presented to the Board no later than the last board meeting of the current fiscal year. 
Per Section 40 (2) of the BC Library Act, the SPLA board has, subject to the approved budget, 
exclusive control over the expenditure of  

a. All money raised by, or grants or contributions provided to the public library 
association, 

b. All money given to the public library association, 

c. The revenue derived from any source, including 

i. Fees 
ii. Fines, and 
iii. Money recovered by the library board for detention, damage or loss of library 

materials, and 

d. All money received by the public library association under an agreement to provide 
library service. 

12. Annual General Meeting – Per Policy C.1, 9 financial statements for the preceding fiscal year 
shall  be presented to the members at the Annual General Meeting. 

13. Capital Items –SPLA’s capitalization threshold is $2,500.00 and the asset must provide a 
lasting benefit to SPLA. Assets that are greater than or equal to the capitalization threshold 
are to be reported on the balance sheet and depreciated over the asset’s useful life.  

14. Reviewing Accumulated Operating Surplus – Upon confirmation of an operating surplus, 
the Finance Committee will undertake the following: 

a. Determine whether the surplus contains restricted funds. Restricted funds may include 

i. Temporarily Restricted Funds – These funds usually come from 
government funds or grants and are restricted for a certain purpose or a time 
limitation, such as the completion of a project. 

ii. Solicited Donations – When donations are solicited for a specific purpose or 
program, they become restricted funds, meaning that they are earmarked for 
those specific programs. For example, if the SPLA solicits donations 
specifically for the purchase of new computers, then the donations must go 
towards that purchase. (To prevent an issue if excess funds are raised, the 
SPLA can indicate on donation, materials that excess funds will go to a 
secondary cause.) 

b. Once restricted fund allocations are removed from the surplus, review the operating 
needs of SPLA, and consider  

i. Whether an allocation from the surplus is to be transferred to an investment 
account. When reviewing investment options, the Finance Committee to 
consider the rate of return, liquidity, and risk. The Finance Committee shall 
favour investment options that provide the highest rate of return with the least 
amount of risk. The Treasurer shall make a recommendation to the Board on 
the amount to be transferred. 

ii. Pay down debt, if applicable. 

iii. Invest in SPLA programs. (e.g. expand existing programs or offer a new 
program). 

15. Insurance – The Treasurer will prepare a report annually on SPLA’S insurance coverage. 
The report will include information on substantive changes to SPLA’s operations that could 
impact coverage. At a minimum, SPLA shall have a Commercial General Liability policy and a 



  Policy C.1 – Financial Operations 

  Policy C.1 – Financial Operations 

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability policy. SPLA will seek comparative quotes every three (3) 
years. 

16. Capital Acquisition Costs - When SPLA acquires new capital assets, the acquisition costs 
are expensed against the new asset. 

PURPOSE 

17. The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for SPLA’s financial operations. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

18. The Board is responsible for monitoring efficient use of resources and ensuring the 
establishment of proper financial controls and policies. 

PROCEDURES 

19. This policy will be reviewed annually.



  Policy C.2 – Expense Reimbursement 

  Policy C.2 – Expense Reimbursement 

POLICY 

1. Per Section 55 (1) of the BC Library Act, members of the SPLA board are not entitled to be 
paid by the library board for their services but may be reimbursed by it for reasonable 
travelling and out of pocket expenses, including childcare expenses, necessarily incurred by 
them in performing their duties under the Act.  

2. The Board, prior to the expense being incurred, must approve requests for reimbursement. 
For approved expenses, with the exception of per diems, receipts must accompany request 
for reimbursement. 

3. Per Section 55 (2) of the BC Library Act, a library board may not reimburse a member for any 
expense if another body reimburses the member for the expenses or pays the expenses.  

4. Mileage reimbursement rate is according to the Canada Revenue Agency automobile 
allowance rate. Updated annually; the rate can be found at: 

Automobile allowance rates - Canada.ca. 

Meal/per diem reimbursement when travelling on behalf of the SPLA will be in accordance with 
the British Columbia Treasury Board Orders and Directives. Updated annually, the rates can be 
found at: 

Meal/Per Diem Allowances 

PURPOSE 

5. The purpose of this policy is to reimburse volunteers and staff at approved rates, and in 
accordance with annual budgets. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

6. The oversight of this expense reimbursement is the responsibility of the Treasurer and the 
Finance Committee. 

PROCEDURES 

7. This policy will be reviewed annually.



  Policy C.3 – Budget Process 

  Policy C.3 – Budget Process 

POLICY 

1. The preparation of the annual operating budget requires the review of the following: 

a. What are the highest priorities in terms of services, including possible new 
programs as well as increases in existing programs? 

b. Are there any programs or activities that, even when efficiently managed, 
have not yielded benefits equal to their costs? 

c. To what extent is it possible to reduce existing costs by greater efficiency and 
savings? 

d. How much money will be needed for obligations already incurred? 

e. What does it cost to continue existing programs? 

f. How much money is needed to be saved to cover future contingencies? 

g. What grants are available for application in the upcoming fiscal year? 

Capital Expenditures 

2. Capital expenditures are funds spent for equipment, major repairs to facilities and 
equipment and other items with a long useful life. SPLA’s capitalization threshold is 
$2,500.00. 

3. The Board shall create a long-range fiscal plan relating to capital expenditures. The 
plan shall be for three to five years. The capital acquisition and replacement plan shall 
be based upon equipment expected life. 

Budgeting Annual Income 

4. Determining annual revenue can be one of the more difficult parts of developing a 
budget – simply because it is harder to forecast than expenses. 

5. Organize charitable income by source: grants, fundraising, donations, and another 
income sources. Using a grading system can distinguish different levels of risk for 
each revenue source. (e.g., “A” for most dependable, “B” less so, etc.) Assign each 
grant a percentage that indicates the likelihood of receiving the grant. (e.g., if there is 
a 50% chance to a $10,000 grant, use $5,000 in the budget.) 

6. Per Section 46 (1) of the BC Library Act, a library board must not charge for  

a. Admission to any part of a building used for public library purposes, or 

b. Using library materials on library premises. 

7. Per Section 46 (2) of the BC Library Act, a library board must allow residents and 
electors of any area served by the library board to do the following free of charge: 

a. Borrow library materials that are normally lent by the library and that belong to 
prescribed categories of library materials; 

b. Use reference and information services as the library board considers 
practicable. 

8. Per Section 46 (3) of the BC Library Act, a library board may charge fees for services 
not required to be provided free of charge under this section, including for the use of 
services described in 46 (2) by anyone who is not a resident or elector of an area 
served by the library board. 



  Policy C.3 – Budget Process 

  Policy C.3 – Budget Process 

Determining Operation Expenses 

9. It is essential that the Board know the costs of delivering services. The four cost 
categories the need to be tracked are: 

a. Direct Costs – The costs for staff salaries, staff benefits, operational 
supplies, and equipment. These costs are budgeted every year and are 
specific to delivering the programs key to SPLA’s charitable purpose. 

b. Indirect Costs – These costs include utilities (water and sewer, electricity, 
phone, etc.) and maintenance and administrative expenses such as 
computers, printers, etc. 

c. Fixed Costs – The costs associated with large capital outlays for equipment 
like loan payments. 

d. Profits – Operating surplus that may be allocated to a reserve fund for future 
capital purchases or contingencies. 

10. The budget planning process to adhere to the following timeline: 

a. Three months prior to fiscal year-end: 

• Detail capital items and prioritize 

• Determine the operational expenses for the upcoming fiscal year. 

• Estimate income 

• Develop payroll costs 

b. Two months prior to fiscal year-end: 

• Complete draft operating budget 

• Review with Board members 

c. One month prior to fiscal year-end 

• Submit final draft operating budget to Board for approval 

PURPOSE 

11. The most important objective of SPLA is to maintain a sound financial position. A 
budget is a fiscal plan of operation. Key benefits of budgeting: 

a. The budget is a management tool for financial control. 

b. The process of developing a budget offers SPLA insight into programs, 
activities, and expenditures. 

c. It provides the Board and staff with the direction to spend money for specified, 
clearly understood purposes. 

d. It becomes the instrument that authorizes expenditures. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

12. The oversight of the budgeting process is the responsibility of the Treasurer and the 
Finance Committee.  

  



  Policy C.3 – Budget Process 

  Policy C.3 – Budget Process 

PROCEDURES 

13. This policy will be reviewed annually.





  C.4 Insurance 

  C.4 - Insurance 

b. The equipment and furniture. 

8. To ensure that SPLA is adequately protected, the Board shall itemize the value of 
each asset that is insured. Typically, insurance policies refer to: 

a. Actual cash value – the cost to replace an asset plus appreciation and less 
depreciation. 

b. Replacement cost value – the cost of repairing or replacing damaged 
property with new property of the same kind and quality. 

9. The Board of SPLA shall review insurance options based on the assets requiring 
coverage. Typically, a basic commercial property insurance policy will cover “named 
perils”, which specifies the types of incidents it will cover. Or the Board of SPLA may 
select a “broad form policy”. A broad form policy covers losses caused by all perils 
except those that are specifically excluded by the policy.  

10. On an annual basis, the Board of SPLA shall review the commercial property 
insurance policy to ensure that there is sufficient coverage for the club’s assets. 

PURPOSE 

11. Insurance policies are intended to help cope with the financial consequences of 
unpredictable events. SPLA shall carry sufficient insurance coverage to mitigate the 
effect of these events and to ensure the long-term sustainability of the club. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

12. The review and oversight of SPLA’s insurance coverage is the responsibility of the 
Board.  

PROCEDURES 

13. This policy will be reviewed annually.



  C.5 Reserve Fund 

  C.5 – Reserve Fund 

POLICY 

Operating Reserve Fund 

1. An operating reserve fund is intended to provide an internal source of funds for 
situations such as a sudden increase in expenses, one-time unbudgeted expenses, 
unanticipated loss in funding or uninsured losses. Operating reserve funds are not 
intended to replace a permanent loss of funds or eliminate an ongoing budget gap.  

2. It is the intention that SPLA’s operating reserve fund to be used and replenished 
within a reasonably short period of time. The operating reserve fund is defined as a 
designated fund set aside by the Board. The minimum amount to be designated as an 
operating reserve fund will be established in an amount sufficient to maintain ongoing 
operations and programs for a set period of time, measured in months. 

3. The minimum operating reserve fund is equal to [one/two/three/six] months of 
average operating costs. The calculation of average monthly operating costs includes 
all recurring, predictable expenses such as salaries and benefits, rent and 
administration. Depreciation, in-kind and other non-cash expenses are not included in 
the calculation. 

4. The amount of the operating reserve fund will be reviewed annually as part of the 
budget process and adjusted in response to both internal and external changes.  

5. The amount of the operating reserve fund and the details of the restriction must be 
approved by a motion of the Board.  

Building and Capital Asset Reserve 

6. The building and capital asset reserve is intended to provide a ready source of funds 
for repair or acquisition of equipment necessary for the effective operation of SPLA’s 
shelter. The target amount of the building and capital asset reserve fund will be 
determined by the Finance Committee and approved by a motion of the Board. 

7. The building and capital asset reserve fund is classified as restricted.  

Accounting for Reserve Funds 

8. The reserve funds will be recorded in the financial statements as: 

a. Operating Reserve Fund  

b. Building and Capital Asset Reserve Fund 

9. If the reserve funds are deemed to be internally restricted, the reason for the 
restriction and the date it was approved by the Board to be noted in the financial 
statements. 

10. Reserves will be maintained in a segregated bank account or investment fund as 
recommended by the Treasurer and the Finance Committee. 

  



  C.5 Reserve Fund 

  C.5 – Reserve Fund 

11. The reserves will be funded with surplus unrestricted operating funds. The Board, 
upon a recommendation from the Treasurer and the Finance Committee, may direct 
that a specific source of revenue be set aside for reserve. 

Use of Reserves 

12. The Board will identify the need for access to reserve funds and confirm that the use 
is consistent with the purpose of the reserves outlined in this policy. This step 
requires analysis of the following: 

a. The reason for the shortfall. 

b. The availability of any other sources of funds before using reserves. 

c. Evaluation of the time period that the funds will be needed and replenished. 

13. Authority for use of reserves is delegated to the Treasurer and Finance Committee. 
The suggested use of reserve funds will be reported to the Board at a regularly 
scheduled Board meeting, accompanied by a description of the analysis and 
determination of the use of funds and plans for replenishment to restore the reserve 
fund to the target minimum amount. 

14. The Treasurer is responsible for ensuring that the reserve funds are maintained and 
used only as described in this policy. Upon approval for the use of reserve funds, the 
Treasurer will maintain records of the use of funds and plan for replenishment, if 
required. 

PURPOSE 

15. The purpose of the reserve funds policy is to ensure the stability and ongoing 
operations of SPLA and to provide a source of internal funds for organizational 
priorities such as building improvements, programming, and capacity building. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

16. The oversight of reserve funds is the responsibility of the Treasurer and the Finance 
Committee.  

PROCEDURES 

17. This policy will be reviewed annually.



  C.6 Fixed Asset Disposal 

  
  C.6 – Fixed Asset Disposal 

POLICY 

1. The decision to dispose of a capital asset shall be approved by a Board motion and 
documented in the minutes. If feasible, the capital asset will be sold or used on a 
trade-in for a replacement asset. 

2. The capital asset will be removed from the balance sheet with a notation of the 
disposal method and date. 

PURPOSE 

3. SPLA recognizes that equipment will become obsolete, broken, or redundant. The 
policy ensures a consistent disposal method for organization assets  

RESPONSIBILITY 

4. The oversight of fixed asset disposal is the responsibility of the Treasurer and the 
Finance Committee. 

PROCEDURES 

5. This policy will be reviewed annually.



  
 C.7 – Public Libraries Reporting and Accountability 

  
 C.7 – Public Libraries Reporting and Accountability 

POLICY 

1. To ensure public accountability and financial transparency, public libraries that 
receive provincial grants or funding must submit three (3) reports to the provincial 
government as part of the public library accountability framework.  

2. Annually, the SPLA will receive a letter outlining the purposes of each grant received, 
expectations on use of those funds, and reporting deadlines. The board, through the 
Chief Librarian, is responsible for submitting financial, written, and statistical reports. 

3. The three (3) reports are: 

a. Annual Survey of BC Public Libraries. 

b. Provincial Public Library Grant Report (PLGR) – The Ministry of Municipal 
Affairs through the Public Libraries Branch distributes annual grants to public 
libraries. Provincial funding is in addition to support from local government. 
The PLGR provides an opportunity for libraries to showcase their 
achievements throughout the year and demonstrate how they support both 
local and provincial priorities. 

c. Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) – All BC public libraries and library 
federations that receive provincial grants are required to submit an annual 
SOFI, as per section 2 of the Financial Information Act (FIA). 

4. Detailed information about these reports, including instructions and deadlines, is 
available through the provincial website in the Reporting and Accountability section. 

5. The SPLA board is responsible for ensuring each of these reports are submitted 
accurately each year. In the case of the SOFI, the board chair is required to sign the 
report as part of the official report. 3 

PURPOSE 

6. The SPLA board members are responsible for ensuring that the finances of the public 
library are managed in accordance with public sector accountability and with the 
highest level of accuracy and transparency.4 Compliance with the Ministry and the 
Public Libraries Branch’s annual reporting requirements is required. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

7. The oversight and completion of the annual reports is the responsibility of the 
Treasurer, the Finance Committee, and the Chief Librarian. 

PROCEDURES 

8. This policy will be reviewed annually. 

 

 

 

 

 
3 BCLTA website, BCLTA Governance Workbook: Financial Oversight 
4 BCLTA website, BCLTA Governance Workbook: Financial Oversight 



Reopening update March 4 2024 – page 1 

Sparwood Public Library Reopening Update 
Prepared by: Anne O’Shea, Library Consultant 
Date: March 3, 2024 

Background 

At the February 5, 2024, Board Mee�ng, Trustees approved the Recommenda�ons for Reopening 
document, which provides a roadmap for SPL toward and beyond reopening. This report provides an 
update on progress on those recommenda�ons, and addi�onal details for the Board’s review.  

Confirmed reopening dates 

The so� opening will be on Wednesday, March 6th 

A reopening celebra�on will be adver�sed for Tuesday April 2nd, 11 am, giving staff �me to work out any 
reopening bugs, and work with the Board Chair and Vice Chair to plan reopening celebra�on.  

Human Resources 

a. Interim supervisor

Tina Hayes began work as the Interim Part-Time Supervisor on February 20th. She has been focused on 
restar�ng library opera�ons and so�ware, reviewing processes, and training new casual staff. She has 
been on site for the past two weeks and will be on site full-�me next week to support the first week of 
opening opera�ons as well. Once the library is reopened and opera�ons have stabilized, Tina will be on 
site on Tuesdays and Wednesdays and available for urgent maters from the staff or Chair by phone 
during other library opera�ng hours. This part-�me role is not the full scope of a Library Director and will 
have a very close focus on opera�onal maters, with limited capacity for other areas of work.  

b. Con�nuing staff

The regular staff returned to work on February 20th, 2024. A staffing Schule has been developed for 
March, which was approved by the Chair/Vice Chair. Scheduling of staff is an opera�onal mater, which 
would not ordinarily involve the Board, but given the absence of a Director and approved budget, 
approval was sought from the Chair and Vice Chair.  

c. Newly hired casual staff

Two new casual staff began training on Feb 27, and a third will begin on March 5. The fourth person 
declined the role.   



d. Library Director

The job description was approved on February 21, and a hiring committee was struck. The next step 

for the committee is to meet to develop a time line for hiring. 

e. HR processes

The Interim Part Time Supervisor and Consultant are drafting and reviewing standard operating 

procedures such as absences, levels of service, and break coverage. 

2. Library Operations

1. Facilities

Underway Completed Items 

• Replace ceiling tiles (seeking quote)

• Replace drip valve in utility room (seeking

quote)

• Locate the fire safety plan and update it

with the new fire alarm code (lock box

has been found, need to work with fire

department for access)

• Working with ELN/lllume to restart ILL

systems.

• Restarting the ILS gradually so staff can

prepare for reopening and address the 

backlog of materials, and fully restore all

public-facing functionality by the soft

opening date.

Recommended additional facilities work:

• Alarm Panel upgrades

• Limit access to video surveillance

cameras

• Test new circulation computer

• Replace circulation computer

I recommend that SPL purchase and install a "people counter" which will automatically count how many 

people visit the library each day. This information is currently collected by staff, who use a clicker to note 

each time a person comes into the library. A people counter can be sourced for under $300 and provides 

a more accurate and less manual way to count this information. The information is provided to the 

Ministry in the annual statistical report and the data will be valuable for the future director who can look 

at which days are busiest and use this to develop hours of operations and staffing schedules. 

Reopening update March 4 2024 - page 2 





Reopening update March 4 2024 – page 4 

3. Collec�ons

As approved on February 21, a catch-up order has been submited to United Library Service, and Tina is 
working with ULS to confirm the details of book processing and cataloguing. The spending targets 
provided to ULS are based on SPL’s usage sta�s�cs, focusing on upda�ng popular collec�ons such as Easy 
Readers, Adult fic�on and nonfic�on, Junior and Teen fic�on and nonfic�on, early readers, and graphic 
novels.  

4. Programs

The library is prepared to begin hos�ng the CVITP tax clinics beginning March 12th. I am reviewing the 
grant paperwork as there is some discussion of purchasing a computer for this clinic using the grant, but 
it’s not clear where this informa�on came from. If anyone has any background, please let Anne know.  

A budget should be set for the reopening celebra�on, which could include programming elements. A 
moderate budget of $500 should be plenty to cover refreshments and some entertainment.  

5. Communica�on plan

At the Feb 22 Board mee�ng, the Board approved a budget of up to $1500 to develop a communica�ons 
plan to support reopening. The outline and key messages were reviewed and approved and reviewed by 
the Chair and Vice Chair.   

Monday, March 4th 

• Leters sent to:
o District of Sparwood
o East Kootenay Regional District
o Ministry of Municipal Affairs

Tuesday, March 5th 

• Website updates, including the banner
• Facebook update
• Media release
• Courtesy email to patrons (send via SPL’s ILS) thanking people for their pa�ence and asking them

to begin returning materials.

Thursday, March 7th 

• Newspaper ad in the Fernie Free Press announcing that the library is open, and sharing details
for the April 2 reopening celebra�on.



Reopening update March 4 2024 – page 5 

Financial Management 

a. Review of 2023 Finances

SPL’s accountant is working on the 2023 Financial Statements, which will come to the Board for review 
and approval.  They have Andrea’s contact informa�on for access to any financial records needed in their 
review.   

b. Budget development

SPL submited a dra� budget to the Sparwood District (atached below) in its request for funds. 
However, the Board needs to review the 2024 budget and allocate funds to meet the needs for 2024 
opera�ons.  

c. District funding

The District of Sparwood funding agreement is in the Board Agenda package. Trustees should note the 
condi�ons for funding.  

d. Fines

On February 22, 2024 Trustees voted to eliminate late fees. This informa�on has been shared with the 
BC Libraries Coopera�ve, who are making the necessary adjustments to SPL’s Integrated Library System. I 
have asked Tina to collect informa�on about any other fees charged by SPL so the Board can review 
these and formalize a policy outlining fees that can be approved annually.  

3. Governance

a. Governance support

Governance support is now in place with Babs Kelly. 

b. AGM

The AGM should be held in the spring when the financials are ready. The Ministry will be issuing 
addi�onal guidance which will be shared with the Board when it arrives.  

c. Policy development

At the February 5th, 2024 mee�ng Trustees approved part A (Policy Manual Administra�on) and B 
(Governance) of the dra� policy framework developed for SPL by the Columbia Basin Trust. Laurie 
Klassen will bring the next sec�ons forward at to the March 4th mee�ng. The remaining dra� sec�ons to 
be reviewed and adopted a�er that date include:  

d. Opera�ons
e. Informa�on and Communica�ons Technology
f. Human Resources and Volunteer Management



Reopening update March 4 2024 – page 6 

Anne has recommended that the following policies be part of SPL’s policy framework: 

• Intellectual Freedom
• Privacy
• Fines and Fees



















Sparwood Public Library Associa�on – Consultant’s Update 

Date:  March 3, 2024 
To: Sparwood Public Library Board of Trustees 
From:  Anne O’Shea, consultant 

Summary of Ac�vi�es 

Since February 20, 2024, I have: 

• Supported the interim part-�me supervisor as she and the team restart opera�ons and address
the backlog of materials.

• Prepared and send an order for $10,000 of new materials from ULS.
• Liaised with the Communica�ons Specialist to get SPL’s communica�ons plan ready.
• Con�nued the work outlined in the reopening plan.

Opera�onal Updates 

• All due dates have been extended to March 15th, 2024. There are currently 726 items on loan
and 100+ items in transit from other libraries.

• The library is an�cipated to open on the a�ernoons of March 6,7,8
• Full-day Tuesday-Friday opera�ons will begin the week of March 12th.

• Please see the Reopening Update for more details.

Governance Updates 

• Suzanne Georgiou-Morey (Vice Chair) con�nued to act as the Chair while Rose Sharma was
unavailable un�l March 29th.

• SPL received correspondence from the Ministry, which is enclosed in the correspondence sec�on
of the agenda.

• Babs Kelly will be atending the Monday, March 4 Board Mee�ng to meet the board and support
your governance work.

Upcoming Board maters 

• Upcoming board mee�ng dates need to be set.
• Response to PLB Request leters, dated November 24, 2023 and March 1, 2024
• Preparing and approving annual financial statements and SOFI
• Submi�ng annual Ministry grant funding report (now overdue)
• Submi�ng SOFI to Ministry by May 15
• Submi�ng 2022 (overdue) and 2023 (due May 15) opera�onal data to the Ministry
• Planning for the AGM
• Building rela�onships with the two local funders: District of Sparwood and Regional District of

East Kootenay

Contract update 



Our exis�ng contract ended when the hours were fully expended on Thursday, February 29. The final 
invoice has been sent.  

As requested, I provided a proposal for a new, shorter contract on Thursday, February 22nd, focused on: 

• Providing support to the Interim Supervisor, Board Chair, and Vice Chair for opera�onal issues on
an as-needed basis.

• Developing a 2024 budget and spending plan for the Board to review
• Support the Board to get back in compliance with the Library Act (specifically regarding the

upcoming and overdue reports (grants, opera�onal data, and financial informa�on)
• Support the Board to engage its local funders (District of Sparwood and Regional District of East

Kootenay).

The Chair has indicated that a new contract will be put in place, but a fully signed leter of agreement 
has not yet been provided. I am working in good faith assuming this will be received by the end of the 
day on Monday, March 4th.  However, if that is not the case, I will need to invoice you out for hours used 
by Friday, March 8th and we can discuss whether another contract is desired a�er March 22nd.  

Please note that I will be unavailable between March 8-22, 2024, due to a prior commitment. 

Total contract hours 120 
Hours used previously 105.25 
Hours used Feb 21-March 3 15.25 
Hours remaining before March 4th 0 
Hours accrued since contract ended: (4.5)





Ministry of Municipal Affairs 
Public Libraries Branch 

PO Box 9831 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria BC V8W 9T1 

Telephone:  1-800-663-7051 

March 1, 2024 

VIA EMAIL 

Rose Sharma, Chair 
Suzanne Georgiou-Morey, Vice Chair 
Debbie Fraser, Treasurer 
Sam Atwal, District of Sparwood Council Appointee 
Harold Baytaluke, Trustee 
Lois Halko, Trustee 
Sparwood Public Library Board  
Email: sharmar1@shaw.ca; suzanne georgiou@yahoo.com; mylila@live.ca; 
satwal@sparwood.ca; hbaytaluke@yahoo.com; loishalko@shaw.ca  

Dear Sparwood Public Library Board, 

I am writing to you because the Sparwood Public Library has not operated since October 24, 
2023. I am including the District of Sparwood in this correspondence as they are your primary 
funder and share an interest in ensuring the return of public library service in the community. 
This letter is a follow up to our previous correspondence of November 2023.  

The purpose of this letter is to confirm the ongoing responsibilities of the Board in overseeing 
governance of the library, listed below:  

• Complying with the Library Act

• Meeting Provincial funding and accountability requirements

• Supporting the return of in-person library operations, which involves:

o Being open and operating the library with staff

o Participating in provincial programs such as interlibrary loan, BC OneCard, BC

Summer Reading Club, etc.

• Formally reporting to local funders (see the “Financial Statements” section below).

Therefore, I am requesting documented confirmation on the status of the Board and 
operations as follows:  

Compliance with the Act 



Ministry of Municipal Affairs 
Public Libraries Branch 

PO Box 9831 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria BC V8W 9T1 

Telephone:  1-800-663-7051 

• Provide proper Board meeting minutes, including motions, to demonstrate that the

Board has held formal meetings since October 30, 2023.

• Provide proof that arrangements (including board recruitment plans) are underway to

hold an Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the membership before June 30, 2024.

• Demonstrate tangible progress has been made to hire a qualified person to serve as an

interim or acting director, which may include contracting of a consultant to temporarily

assume some library director responsibilities.

• Provide a plan for how the Board will be meeting its financial obligations and reporting

requirements on the use of provincial funding including one-time grants. The Provincial

annual reports are still due as follows:

o Provincial Public Library Grant Report (PLGR) is due March 1, 2024
o Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) due May 15, 2024
o Annual Survey of B.C.’s Public Libraries due May 15, 2024
o 2022 Annual Survey remains outstanding from 2023

Financial Statements 

In addition to providing the above documentation to the PLB, under the Library Act the Board is 
required to: 

• Prepare Board approved annual financial statements and provide them to the District of

Sparwood, RDEK and the PLB by April 30, 2024.

• Provide a copy of these 2023 financial statements for inspection by the members of the

public library association at or before the AGM.

Outstanding Items 

• Establish an active, publicly available library email address intended to serve as a key
contact for library operations.

• Identify a key contact to be the Board’s representative, who will be available and
communicating regularly with the community, the District of Sparwood and the PLB.

• Post both email addresses on the library’s website.

According to the SPL’s 2022 SOFI submission and Provincial grant fund reporting, the library has 
financial reserves. I encourage you to use some of these funds to continue engaging consultants 
to support the library’s reopening and effective Board governance activities. We have also 



Ministry of Municipal Affairs 
Public Libraries Branch 

PO Box 9831 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria BC V8W 9T1 

Telephone:  1-800-663-7051 

provided a small grant to the Kootenay Library Federation to help address your governance 
challenges and prioritize your responsibilities.  

Thank you for your time and attention. Staff are available to answer further questions you may 
have.  

Mari Martin 
Director 

Cc: Michele Schalekamp, CAO, District of Sparwood (mschalekamp@sparwood.ca) 
Megan Rawles, Manager of Corporate Services 




